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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

At the intersection of The Alaska Railraod and a government constructed wagon road
that led to the Willow Creek Mining District from the supply station at Knik, the
Alaska Engineering Commission laid out a townsite, Wasilla, in 1917. The town along
the railroad would supply the mining region and farmers in the area--replacing Knik,
and more important, would encourage new development.

.

One of the first to move to the new townsite was O. G. Herning who had opened a
general supply store in Knik in 1905. When the railroad route bypassed Knik Herning
perceived that activity would shift. At the public auction in Wasilla Herning
purchased a lot in the new townsite along the government wagon road and in the
center of the site. The small log structure he moved to the site from Knik in 1917
reportedly is the structure now attached to the back of the general store and leased
at present for use as a bookstore.

The same year, 1919, construction of a corrugated sheet metal structure began. The
rectangular building originally measured 23 by 75 feet, built on a cement foundation,
and typical of most early Alaskan commercial buildings, was functional rather than
ornate. The front, along the government wagon road had large windows and a narrow
wood porch, with the door in the center. Inside glass cupboards and shelves lined
the walls and filled the center of the room. Towards the rear a stairway led to

the second floor. Behind this main room Herning later added a small area for an
office. On the northwest end of the building a storage room, uninsulated, was
tacked on, accessible from the main room by double doors. The second floor or

attic, about six feet high, served as another storage area.

Walter Teeland purchased the business in 1947 and owned and operated it until 1973

when he sold the operations to Julian E. Mead, the present owner. During the 1940's

some refurbishing was done. A new stairway to the second floor was built along the i
rear wall of the main room, the old staircase removed and a beam installed down the
center of the room that extended from the front of the building to the rear because

the structure was sagging. A new addition was added to the back, used as an office,

and Herning's old office was converted into shelf space. A new entrance, on the

north side, was also installed. Customers entered a small uninsulated, rough wood

entry room, and turned right to enter the store.

Mead has made additional changes. The uninsulated shed has been rebuilt and
insulated for the liquor business that Mead added. The double doors from the main
room were removed and shelves added. The original wood was turned to the unpainted
side and reused. '"Knik Trading Company" markings were still visible on some of

the boards. Upstairs, the area has been partitioned. To the left of the stairway,
above Herning's office, is Mead's office. To the right the first room is a carpeted
panelled room with a pool table. The area over the front of the building has not
been remodelled and continues to be used for storage.

Wood floors, shelves, glass cabinets and wood tables are still in the store. The
Mead's are consciously attempting to maintain the historic atmosphere of the
structure and to continue to operate the business as "just a country store."
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

: Teeland's Country Store,originally opened as the Knik Trading Company in the town
that was then the boom town, Knik, has operated in the railroad-created town of

| Wasilla since the town lots were sold in 1917. The original small log building

“ that was moved to Wasilla from Knik in 1917 reportedly still stands, presently
leased and used as a bookstore. The building that owner 0. G. Herning constructed
the same year, 1917, continues to be used as a general supply store. Over the
years additions and refurbishing have been done to maintain the structure and

the business. One of few remainders of small businesses that flourished in the
small Alaska communities during the first half of the twentieth century, Teeland's
General Store continues to serve area residents and travellers as in the past and
at its original location. Purchased by Julian E. Mead in 1973, the owner operates
the building and is committed to preserving the historic character of the structure
and business.

HISTORIC BACKGROUND

" From about 1898 to 1917, before the Alaska Railroad created Wasilla, a town at the
head of Cook Inlet, Knik, was the supply center for the Willow Creek Mining District,
transshipment point for the Turnagain Arm Mining District, and terminus for trails
to the Interior of Alaska. Knik's importance diminished when the Alaska Engineer-
ing Commission selected a route that bypassed the town. A short distance east of
Knik the Commission established a construction camp, then a town named Wasilla.
Rather than to Knik and overland by rough trails, supplies were shippped to Seward
then inland by rail to Wasilla, for the Willow Creek district, and to Fairbanks.

0. G. Herning established a general supply store, the Knik Trading Company, in Knik
in 1905. When the railroad auctioned lots in the new Wasilla townsite in 1917 he
purchased one in the center of town that was along the wagon road that had been
built from Knik to the Willow Creek mines. That same yeatr he moved a small log
building from Knik to Wasilla and .opened for business. The country store, known
as Herning's, flourished and operations continually expanded. The log building,
reportedly leased and operated as a bookstore off the back of the general store,
was replaced with the corrugated metal structure, still used, the first year.

Walter Teeland purchased the business in 1947 and renamed the store Teeland's,

the name it is known by today. He sold the operation in 1973 to Julian E. Mead,

the present owner. Mead has expanded.the business into liquor sales, and to
accomodate this new line remodelled a storage area. To the extent possible, however,
Mead has attempted to maintain the store's historic atmosphere. No longer the only
grocery store in Wasilla, today Teeland's is more properly termed a convenience store.
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One of few remaining country stores from the many that flourished throughout Alaska
prior to World War II, and operating in a typical early Alaskan commercial structure,
Teeland's catches some of the atmosphere of old Alaska.
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b, Julian E, Mead is President of Alyeskan General Enterprises, Inc., present
owner., Mailing addeess and telephone remain unchanged.

7. Paragraph 2, final sentence should read: The small log structure he moved to the
site from Knik in 1917 is the structure now attached to the back of the store,

Paragraph 3, first sentence, change 1919 to 1917.

Paragraph 4, first sentence, change 1973 to 1972,

8+ The date, 1973, in both first and 4th paragraph should be corrected to 1972.
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